

Questions Submitted by Chairwoman DeLauro

Fiscal Year 2009 Hearing Questions 


Grain Inspection, Packers and Stockyards AdministrationPRIVATE 

GISPA-1, Livestock complaints


Ms. DeLauro:
  Update the table that appears in last year’s hearing record showing the number of complaints, the number of related investigations, and the number of related actions taken to address findings. Please include fiscal year 2007 actuals and fiscal year 2008 estimates.  Add an explanation as to what action GIPSA takes in response to a violation.


Response:     This information is submitted for the record.


[The information follows:]
Number of Complaints and Investigations, 1998 – 2008*.

	Fiscal Year
	Number of Complaints*
	Number of Investigations

	1998
	1,684
	NA

	1999
	1,372
	NA

	2000
	1,898
	NA

	2001
	1,619
	371

	2002
	1,600
	380

	2003
	1,744
	393

	2004
	1,923
	161

	2005
	2,315
	267

	2006
	310
	288

	2007
	271
	271

	2008 (est.)
	200
	200


* Estimated for 2008.  The complainant may be a producer, anonymous caller, third party, or feedlot operator who may not be a producer. The 2005 and prior figures are based on the method of calculation used by GIPSA prior to changes made in response to the recommendations received from the USDA OIG  report, and include regulatory monitoring actions and investigations    initiated  by GIPSA as a result of regulatory monitoring.  Figures for 2006 and 2007 are actual complaints to GIPSA from outside parties.
Several enforcement actions are available to GIPSA in the event it finds a regulated entity in violation of the Packers and Stockyards Act (P&S Act), including notices of violation, stipulation agreements, and administrative or civil actions.  Administrative and civil actions may be decided by a judge who issues a formal decision and order, or may be settled with a consent decision agreed to by both parties.  In each of these instances the entity against whom a complaint has been filed is ordered to cease and desist from engaging in a specific unlawful activity and may be assessed a civil penalty or have their registration under the P&S Act suspended.  Only dealers and market agencies are currently subject to suspensions under the P&S Act.

A stipulation agreement is a new enforcement tool available to GIPSA as of fiscal year (FY) 2007.  In April 2007, GIPSA published changes to the Rules of Practice Governing Proceedings under the Packers and Stockyards Act (9 CFR 202) to allow the agency to resolve violation cases more timely.  These procedures allow GIPSA to offer to settle a violation case with the respondent by means of an agreement whereby the respondent waives his or her right to a hearing and pays a civil penalty.
GIPSA-2, Grain facilities


Ms. DeLauro:  Update the table that appears in last year’s hearing record showing the number of persons or companies who registered under current statutes, and the number of grain facilities involved in export activities to include 2007.

Response:     The information is submitted for the record. 

[The information follows:] 
	Year
	No. of Registrants
	Total Export Facilities*

	1998
	 86
	62

	1999
	 78
	56

	2000
	 79
	57

	2001
	 78
	57

	2002
	 87
	56

	2003
	 91
	53

	2004
	103
	54

	2005
	 99
	54

	2006
	123
	54

	2007
	122
	53


* Includes only the elevators located at export port locations in the United States that export grain in waterborne carriers. 

GIPSA-3, Grain inspected and/or weighed


Ms. DeLauro:  Update the tables that appear in last year's hearing record, showing the grains inspected and/or weighed for export by country of destination for fiscal year 2007.


Response:
  The information is submitted for the record.


[The information follows:]

	DESTINATION
	COUNTRY TOTAL (MT)
	BARLEY
	CANOLA
	WHITE 

CORN
	YELLOW CORN
	FLAXSEED
	MIXED
	OATS
	SORGHUM
	SOYBEANS
	SUNFLOWER
	WHEAT

	AFGHANISTAN 
	66,813
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	66,813

	ALGERIA     
	1,379,511
	 
	 
	 
	952,274
	 
	 
	 
	 
	2,447
	 
	424,790

	ARGENTINA   
	0
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	0

	ARMENIA     
	2,500
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	2,500

	AZERBAIJAN  
	10,800
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	10,800

	BANGLADESH  
	311,031
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	311,031

	BARBADOS    
	106,520
	 
	 
	 
	40,754
	 
	 
	 
	 
	24,917
	 
	40,849

	BELGIUM     
	422,286
	 
	 
	 
	 
	49,129
	 
	 
	 
	242,896
	 
	130,261

	BELIZE      
	27,503
	 
	 
	 
	4,309
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	23,194

	BOLIVIA     
	22,373
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	22,373

	BRAZIL      
	327,492
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	327,492

	BURMA       
	2,162
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	2,162

	CAMEROON    
	17,879
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	1,420
	 
	 
	16,459

	CANADA      
	1,836,099
	 
	 
	 
	532,648
	 
	 
	 
	 
	546,497
	 
	756,954

	CAPE VERDE  
	8,152
	 
	 
	 
	8,152
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	CHAD        
	45,020
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	33,750
	 
	 
	11,270

	CHILE       
	643,243
	 
	 
	 
	215,047
	 
	 
	 
	 
	7,931
	 
	420,265

	CHINA MAIN  
	11,507,477
	 
	 
	 
	3,190
	 
	 
	 
	 
	11,495,329
	 
	8,958

	CHINA T     
	7,446,119
	9,573
	 
	20
	4,334,519
	 
	22
	 
	295
	2,069,446
	 
	1,032,244

	COLOMBIA    
	4,131,385
	 
	 
	93,399
	3,086,632
	 
	 
	 
	 
	308,959
	 
	642,395

	CONGO (BRAZ)
	46,819
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	46,819

	CONGO (KINS)
	23,865
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	23,865

	COSTA RICA  
	1,176,514
	 
	 
	57,552
	597,098
	 
	 
	 
	 
	292,445
	 
	229,419

	DESTINATION
	COUNTRY TOTAL (MT)
	BARLEY
	CANOLA
	WHITE 

CORN
	YELLOW CORN
	FLAXSEED
	MIXED
	OATS
	SORGHUM
	SOYBEANS
	SUNFLOWER
	WHEAT

	CUBA        
	1,025,309
	
	
	
	565,635
	
	
	
	
	162,174
	
	297,500

	DENMARK     
	74,141
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	74,141
	 
	 

	DJIBOUTI    
	620
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	620

	DOMINICN REP
	1,537,197
	 
	 
	59
	1,195,059
	 
	 
	 
	 
	4
	 
	342,075

	ECUADOR     
	584,682
	 
	 
	 
	492,322
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	92,360

	EGYPT       
	7,178,389
	 
	 
	 
	3,453,911
	 
	 
	 
	 
	529,487
	 
	3,194,991

	EL SALVADOR 
	861,209
	 
	 
	92,231
	492,365
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	276,613

	ETHIOPIA    
	357,759
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	2,740
	 
	 
	355,019

	FRANCE      
	213,692
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	43,457
	170,235
	 
	 

	GEORGIA     
	15,000
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	15,000

	GERMANY     
	860,276
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	10
	860,176
	 
	90

	GHANA       
	58,081
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	58,081

	GUATEMALA   
	1,039,160
	 
	 
	36,408
	633,195
	 
	 
	 
	 
	11,186
	 
	358,371

	GUINEA      
	18,951
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	18,951

	GUYANA      
	12,398
	 
	 
	 
	11,302
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	1,096

	HAITI       
	174,556
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	174,556

	HONDURAS    
	568,437
	 
	 
	37,867
	318,198
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	212,372

	HONG KONG   
	55,792
	 
	 
	 
	55,247
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	545

	INDONESIA   
	2,320,688
	 
	 
	 
	136,239
	 
	 
	 
	 
	1,263,521
	 
	920,928

	IRAN        
	69,016
	 
	 
	 
	69,016
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	IRAQ        
	1,148,791
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	1,148,791

	IRELAND     
	18,415
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	18,348
	 
	 
	67

	DESTINATION
	COUNTRY TOTAL (MT)
	 BARLEY


	CANOLA


	WHITE

CORN


	YELLOW

CORN


	FLAXSEED


	MIXED


	OATS


	SORGHUM


	SOYBEANS


	SUNFLOWER


	WHEAT



	ISRAEL      
	1,333,945
	
	
	
	825,299
	
	
	
	54,536
	255,043
	
	199,067

	ITALY       
	600,561
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	94,318
	35,467
	 
	470,776

	IVORY COAST 
	16,032
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	16,032

	JAMAICA     
	438,596
	 
	 
	 
	261,523
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	177,073

	JAPAN       
	22,498,410
	374,628
	 
	62,027
	15,232,717
	 
	 
	 
	719,281
	2,999,923
	 
	3,109,834

	JORDAN      
	232,348
	 
	 
	80
	231,918
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	350

	KENYA       
	68,960
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	68,960

	KOREA REP   
	5,708,145
	 
	 
	1,418
	3,976,309
	 
	 
	 
	 
	547,486
	 
	1,182,932

	LEBANON     
	221,862
	 
	 
	 
	210,988
	 
	 
	 
	 
	10,874
	 
	 

	LIBYA       
	238,368
	 
	 
	 
	238,368
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	MADAGASCAR  
	32,015
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	6,230
	 
	 
	25,785

	MALAWI      
	10,000
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	10,000

	MALAYSIA    
	662,951
	 
	 
	 
	167,993
	 
	 
	 
	 
	336,953
	 
	158,005

	MALI        
	7,749
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	7,749

	MALTA       
	44,011
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	44,011

	MARTINIQUE  
	5,479
	 
	 
	 
	5,479
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	MAURITANIA  
	3,120
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	3,120

	MEXICO      
	15,865,751
	19,585
	454
	369,302
	7,569,765
	 
	 
	5,200
	1,688,026
	3,974,880
	 
	2,238,539

	MONGOLIA    
	25,000
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	25,000

	MOROCCO     
	1,565,112
	16,355
	 
	 
	603,560
	 
	 
	 
	 
	240,474
	 
	704,723

	MOZAMBIQUE  
	111,866
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	111,866

	NAMIBIA     
	21,872
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	21,872

	DESTINATION
	COUNTRY TOTAL (MT)
	 BARLEY


	CANOLA


	WHITE

CORN


	YELLOW

CORN


	FLAXSEED


	MIXED


	OATS


	SORGHUM


	SOYBEANS


	SUNFLOWER


	WHEAT



	NETHERLANDS 
	1,608,792
	
	
	
	16,278
	
	
	
	146,422
	1,402,076
	
	44,016

	NEW ZEALAND 
	21,649
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	21,649

	NICARAGUA   
	239,382
	 
	 
	 
	120,460
	 
	 
	 
	 
	1,320
	 
	117,602

	NIGER       
	15,600
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	15,600
	 
	 
	 

	NIGERIA     
	2,429,251
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	2,429,251

	NORTH KOREA 
	512
	 
	 
	 
	512
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	OMAN        
	20,351
	 
	 
	 
	20,351
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	PANAMA      
	475,642
	 
	 
	 
	347,119
	 
	 
	 
	 
	5,252
	 
	123,271

	PERU        
	770,384
	 
	 
	 
	340,095
	 
	 
	 
	 
	6,292
	 
	423,997

	PHILIPPINES 
	1,624,169
	 
	 
	 
	488
	 
	 
	 
	 
	79,133
	 
	1,544,548

	PORTUGAL    
	261,380
	 
	 
	21
	80
	 
	 
	 
	 
	183,669
	 
	77,610

	REP S AFRICA
	495,452
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	250
	 
	 
	495,202

	ROMANIA     
	31,502
	 
	 
	 
	31,502
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	RUSSIA      
	7,677
	 
	 
	 
	7,677
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	SAUDI ARABIA
	693,468
	52,647
	 
	 
	640,821
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	SENEGAL     
	16,943
	 
	 
	 
	7,747
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	9,196

	SIERRA LEONE
	8,782
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	8,782

	SINGAPORE   
	57,065
	 
	 
	 
	571
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	56,494

	SOMALIA     
	54,350
	 
	 
	 
	16,920
	 
	 
	 
	35,430
	 
	 
	2,000

	SPAIN       
	1,687,726
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	1,048,251
	302,896
	 
	336,579

	SRI LANKA   
	201,541
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	201,541

	ST. VINCENT 
	41,010
	 
	 
	 
	19,005
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	22,005

	SUDAN       
	304,841
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	304,841
	 
	 
	 

	DESTINATION
	COUNTRY TOTAL (MT)
	 BARLEY


	CANOLA


	WHITE

CORN


	YELLOW

CORN


	FLAXSEED


	MIXED


	OATS


	SORGHUM


	SOYBEANS


	SUNFLOWER


	WHEAT



	SURINAME    
	 13,063
	
	
	
	   10,203
	
	
	
	
	
	
	2,860

	SWEDEN      
	  5,156
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	5,156

	SYRIA       
	1,945,351
	 
	 
	 
	1,675,790
	 
	 
	 
	 
	269,561
	 
	 

	TANZANIA    
	 20,000
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	20,000

	THAILAND    
	897,430
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	533,206
	 
	364,224

	TRINIDAD    
	244,632
	 
	 
	 
	          95,634
	 
	 
	 
	 
	3,379
	 
	145,619

	TUNISIA     
	515,796
	21,975
	 
	 
	464,499
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	29,322

	TURKEY      
	922,668
	 
	 
	 
	366,434
	 
	 
	 
	 
	510,499
	 
	45,735

	UGANDA      
	 34,500
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	14,190
	 
	 
	20,310

	UN ARAB EM  
	348,676
	10,548
	 
	 
	8,664
	 
	 
	 
	 
	191,570
	 
	137,894

	UN KINGDOM  
	 95,029
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	62,878
	 
	32,151

	VENEZUELA   
	1,252,693
	 
	 
	 
	519,172
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	733,521

	VIETNAM     
	106,065
	 
	 
	 
	7,862
	 
	 
	 
	 
	20,883
	 
	77,320

	YEMEN       
	1,017,889
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	1,017,889

	ZAMBIA      
	 11,500
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	11,500

	ZIMBABWE    
	  7,340
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	7,340
	 
	 
	 

	GRAND TOTAL
	115,971,532
	505,311
	454
	750,384
	51,238,915
	49,129
	22
	5,200
	4,234,735
	30,035,505
	0
	29,151,877


GIPSA-4, Grain dust explosions

Ms. DeLauro:  Update the table that appears in last year's hearing record showing the number of explosions resulting from grain dust, including the number of deaths and injuries, to include fiscal year 2007.    What is GIPSA doing to keep these numbers down?

Response:     The information is submitted for the record.


[The information follows]:
	Fiscal Year
	Number of Explosions
	Injuries
	Fatalities

	1998
	18
	21
	7

	1999
	11
	15
	0

	2000
	 9
	19
	1

	2001
	 8
	 7
	1

	2002
	 9
	11
	1

	2003
	 6
	 7
	2

	2004
	 6
	 3
	0

	2005
	10
	 3
	1

	2006
	 9
	11
	1

	2007
	 4
	 6
	0


As part of our longstanding commitment to ensuring the safety of our workforce and the facilities in which they work, GIPSA continues to gather and monitor data on agricultural dust explosions.  Data is acquired through academia, media monitoring, and employee and industry reports.  GIPSA does not investigate agricultural dust explosions and the private sector is not required to report explosions to GIPSA.  The grain industry has taken steps to decrease dust explosions.  Throughout the years grain companies adopted advanced technology, and implemented new elevator design or retrofitted and modified existing facilities to preclude explosions.  Although the volume of grain moving through export elevators has increased over the years, government, industry, union, and trade associations’ efforts have lowered the incidence of explosions through the increased awareness of explosion preventive measures.  OSHA Standard CFR 1910.272 on Grain Handling Facilities has also played an important role in reducing injuries and fatalities in grain elevators.  A regulatory review of the standard in 2003 found that since its implementation in 1988, there has been a 55 percent decrease in injuries and 70 percent drop in deaths due to grain dust explosions.

Historically, GIPSA conducted major studies and collaborated with industry to improve elevator safety.  GIPSA funded, in part, explosion research by the National Academy of Sciences, testified at congressional hearings, funded a 
2-year research project by Purdue University to study dust accumulation and various grain handling methods to develop ways to measure dust emissions and methods to decelerate grain with minimum damage and dust formation.   We also implemented changes that made our workplaces safer, including moving FGIS inspection laboratories at least 100 feet from elevator headhouses.  Today, GIPSA maintains a strong safety and health program that establishes safety policies for all employees and sets standards for the facilities in which they work, and provides ongoing training on a variety of subjects including dust explosions, how they occur, and how to prevent them.  Collateral Duty Safety & Health Officers in each field location were briefed by agricultural dust explosion expert Dr. Robert Schoeff, Professor Emeritus, Kansas State University, concerning the causes of dust explosions with emphasis on good housekeeping.  
GIPSA-5, Exported grain complaints

Ms. DeLauro:  Update the table that appears in last year's hearing record showing the number of complaints for exported grain that you received and the number of open cases to include fiscal year 2007 actuals and fiscal year 2008 figures to date. What does GIPSA do to address complaints?

Response:     The information is submitted for the record.


[The information follows:]
	Fiscal Year
	Number of Complaints
	Cases Open

	1998
	15
	0

	1999
	22
	0

	2000
	13
	0

	2001
	18
	0

	2002
	 9
	0

	2003
	15
	0

	2004
	 4
	0

	2005
	11
	0

	2006 
	10
	0

	2007 
	 6
	3

	 2008*
	 3
	0







*(as of 04/09/2008)

When an importer of U.S. grains reports a quality discrepancy, GIPSA analyzes samples retained on file from the original inspection and samples submitted from destination (if the buyer chooses to submit them) to evaluate whether the discrepancy was due to differences in samples, procedures, or an actual change in quality from the time of the original inspection.  When an importer reports a weight discrepancy, we review detailed records from the original weighing service.  The process verifies whether the original inspection and weighing service provided at the time of loading was correct, based on all available information.  GIPSA then issues a report outlining its findings and providing suggestions to avoid similar discrepancies in the future.

Occasionally, a particular buyer or importing country reports repeated discrepancies which cannot be resolved by a shipment-by-shipment review under this process.  In such cases, GIPSA may conduct collaborative sample studies or joint monitoring activities to address the discrepancy in a more comprehensive manner.

For the years 2004 through 2007, the complaints received represented about 0.1, 0.4, 0.3, and 0.2 percent, respectively, of grain exports by weight.  The nature of complaints did not follow any pattern or trend, and we do not consider the differences among these years to be significant.

To provide more of an historical perspective, in the 5 years from 1999 to 2003, GIPSA received an average of 15.2 complaints per year, representing about 0.5 percent of U.S. grain exports by weight.   Fifteen years prior (1985 to 1998), we received an average of 47.8 complaints per year, or about 1.9 percent of all U.S. grain exports by weight.

GIPSA-6, Aflatoxin

Ms. DeLauro.  For the record, please update the table that appears in last year's hearing record showing the number of aflatoxin inspections and a column that represents the violations in these inspections to include fiscal year 2007.  What action does GIPSA take to address aflatoxin violations?

Response:     The information is submitted for the record.


[The information follows:]
	Fiscal Year
	No. of Inspections
	Violations

	1998
	 54,923
	0

	1999
	 62,875
	0

	2000
	 62,701
	0

	2001
	 61,234
	0

	2002
	 66,062
	0

	2003
	111,265
	0

	2004
	102,251
	0

	2005
	 96,655
	0

	2006
	218,078
	0

	2007
	148,176
	 1*




*Improper aflatoxin procedures

If GIPSA identifies an alleged aflatoxin violation of the U.S. Grain Standards Act or the Agricultural Marketing Act, the Agency takes appropriate corrective action.  Corrective action could range from an informational letter to a reprimand letter to an administrative civil penalty, which will depend upon the findings of the investigation, the severity of the violation, the number times that the person/company has been in violation.  Every corrective action is administered on a case-by-case basis.

GIPSA-7, Violation report calls

Ms. DeLauro:  How many violation report calls did you receive in fiscal year 2007?  How many were investigated?  What is the nature of violations reported?  Please describe GIPSA’s actions to address these violations.

Response:     GIPSA maintains a hotline telephone number for receiving complaints from the public.  During fiscal year 2007, FGIS received 14 hotline complaints.  Two of the fourteen hotline complaints received were investigated by GIPSA. The nature of violations reported and actions taken was:

· Complainant alleged that an official agency was providing answers to prospective samplers and technicians when giving test.  FGIS opened an investigation on this complaint.

· Complainant reported buying sunflower seeds to feed birds that contained an increasing amount of foreign materials.  FGIS contacted the individual to advise that official inspection of domestic grain was voluntary; furthermore, that he may want to express his concerns with the manufacturer or a consumer protection group.

· Complainant reported purchasing a box of Oat Bran Cereal manufactured by Hodgson Mills, and felt it contained too much oat hull in the product.  It was impossible to contact the caller because they did not leave any contact information.

· Complainant expressed they had hundreds of violations to report, but was hesitant to provide a name due to a secrecy agreement between them and the company they worked for; however, they provided an email address.  FGIS contacted the caller via email to provide contact information and to inform the caller they could remain anonymous if desired.  FGIS opened an investigation on this complaint.   

· Complainant reported that a company was weighing their own outbound trucks of chicken feed and questioned if this was a legal practice under the P & S Act.  This complaint was forwarded to GIPSA’s Packers & Stockyards Program.

· Complainant requested guidance about meeting Packers & Stockyards Act requirements to start up a business. This complaint was forwarded to GIPSA’s Packers & Stockyards Program.

· Complainant alleged that they had not yet received a payment from an individual whom purchased goats from them.  This complaint was forwarded to GIPSA’s Packers & Stockyards Program.

· Complainant left 5 messages alleging a grocery store in Georgia that was selling products (meat and cookies) that were infested with maggots and leeches.  The caller did not leave any contact information; therefore, it was impossible for FGIS to contact the caller.

· Complainant alleged that a grain processing plant with its own waster water plant was introducing the sludge from the waste water into the distillers grains produced at the plant.  FGIS contacted the caller for additional information and determined his concerns would be properly addressed by the Food and Drug Administration, to which FGIS forwarded the complaint. 

· Complainant alleged a company was smuggling seed and forging government seed analysis documents.  After contacting the caller, to gather additional information, it was determined that the alleged violations did not fall under USGSA or AMA.  The information was forwarded to the California Department of Food and Agriculture and the USDA Agricultural Marketing Service. 
· In 2007, P&SP received 29 complaints via Hotline, out of the total of 271 complaints received and investigated by the Agency.  The nature of P&S-related calls included allegations of:  failure to pay for livestock or remit seller funds; bonding activities; poultry contract issues; unfair and deceptive business practices; registration and jurisdiction issues; inadequate or false records; and weighing matters.  Informal compliance was obtained in 6 cases.  No violations were found in 17 of these 29 instances, and 2 others were found to deal with circumstances outside of the jurisdiction of the Agency.  Four of the investigations are still pending final resolution.

GIPSA-8, Poultry complaints

Ms. DeLauro:  Please update the table that appears in last year's hearing record showing the number of poultry compliance complaints received in fiscal years 1996 through 2007 and the number of related investigations.

Response:     The information is submitted for the record.


[The information follows:]

Number of Poultry Complaints and Investigations,

1996-2007.

	Fiscal Year
	Number of Complaints
	Number of Investigations

	1996
	 86
	NA

	1997
	 66
	NA

	1998
	 82
	NA

	1999
	113
	NA

	2000
	 97
	NA

	2001
	125
	NA

	2002
	 53
	NA

	2003
	 62
	NA

	2004
	 52
	     203

	2005
	 36
	53

	2006
	 49
	49

	2007
	 45
	45


GIPSA-9, Poultry complaints

Ms. DeLauro:  What was the nature of the poultry complaints received in the most recent year?  How many investigations were done in the most recent year?  What were the results of these investigations?

Response:  The information on number of complaints is submitted for the record.  All poultry complaints through July 2007 led to an investigation.
	Number of Poultry Complaints and Investigations, 2007

	Nature of Complaint
	Number

	Contract Poultry Arrangements
	17

	Failure to Pay
	 1

	Grower Termination
	12

	Other
	 3

	Unfair/Deceptive Practices
	 9

	Weighing Practices
	 3

	Total
	45


The 45 complaints have resulted in 2 violations, 29 non-violations, 8 informal settlements, 1 case outside the Agency’s purview, and 5 open investigations.    

GIPSA-10, Dealer/order buyer financial failures

Ms. DeLauro:  Please update the table that appears in last year's hearing record showing dealer/order buyer financial failures to include fiscal year 2007.  Provide the Committee with an explanation as to why the recovery rates have dropped drastically since 2000.  Last year’s hearing record indicates that GIPSA is exploring potential solutions to the historically low recovery rates. Please update the Committee on these efforts.  Please provide the Committee with an explanation for the significant increase in the number of dealer failures since fiscal year 2005.

Response:     The information is submitted for the record.


[The information follows:]

Dealer Financial Failures and Restitution, 1997-2007
	Fiscal Year
	No. of Dealer Failures
	Total Owed Livestock
	Recovery From Bonds
	Recovery From Other Sources
	Percent Total Recovery

	1997
	 8
	 $ 732,424
	$243,450
	$38,064
	38

	1998
	10
	$685,726
	$133,345
	$61,435
	28

	1999
	10
	$1,684,128
	$291,261
	$38,024
	20

	2000
	11
	$1,464,733
	$324,979
	$91,800
	28

	2001
	11
	$2,841,305
	$317,444
	$24,786
	12

	2002
	11
	$3,271,962
	$618,764
	$60,000
	21

	2003
	 5
	$1,805,600
	$112,281
	$28,923
	 8

	2004
	 3
	$770,860
	$95,000
	0
	12

	2005
	 1
	$2,993,990
	   0  
	0
	  0*

	2006
	13
	$3,018,131
	  $134,936
	$26,856
	  5*

	2007
	31
	$6,941,930
	  $257,634
	549,303
	 12*


  * Final recovery rates may change pending final resolution.

The number of dealer financial failures in 2006 at 13 was not statistically different from the 10-year average of 10 failures per year.  The increased number of failures in 2007, however, was a significant difference.  This very large single year increase has not persisted into the 2008 fiscal year.  From October 1, 2007 to April 1, 2008 there were 9 failures, which if it extrapolates for the full year will still result in an above average rate of failures.  The question why we are witnessing an increased failure rate is not unequivocal. In 2005, GIPSA started a statistical analysis of dealer failure rates based on data the livestock dealers report to GIPSA in their annual reports. This analysis is part of a larger effort to identify factors that place dealers at risk. From the within year statistical analysis, several risk factors have been identified including dealer businesses organized as sole proprietorships, compared to say partnership or corporations, and length of time in business, with younger firms at greater risk. While these statistical models have provided insights into firm failures, they do not provide strong predictions about any given firm’s chance of failure.  This is because in a given year total failures are a small fraction of the total number (2 percent in 2006) and a large percentage of dealers share the at-risk factors.  Other work on the failure rate question suggests there are broader institutional factors that may be the trigger for a particular failure.  The factors can range from family difficulties to the selling pattern of the livestock dealer.  For example, anecdotal evidence suggests dealers who accept payment for livestock on a carcass or dressed weight basis are taking higher risks, and experiencing larger failure rates than cohorts selling on a live weight basis. Data from other industry-wide studies of carcass based selling indicates an average tendency for sellers to overestimate the value of their live animals before slaughter, thus when the carcasses are graded they ultimately receive less than the sellers anticipated.  The extent that dealers may be experiencing credit access restrictions under the current economic climate does not appear to be a factor currently in firm failures.  It is a situation, however, the at-risk group may be more susceptible to than older businesses with organizational types that have deeper capitalization levels, and GIPSA is monitoring this situation as it progresses.
GIPSA-11, Four firm concentration ratio

Ms. DeLauro:  Update last year’s table showing the four firm concentration ratio for steer and heifer slaughter, boxed beef, sheep and lamb slaughter, and hog slaughter to include data for 2006 and 2007.  

Response:     The information is submitted for the record.


[The information follows:]  Data are not yet available for 2007.
Four-Firm Concentration as Percent Market Share of Livestock Slaughter by Type of Livestock, 1996-2006*

	Year
	Steers & Heifers
	Boxed Beef
	Sheep & Lambs
	Hogs

	1996
	79
	82
	73
	55

	1997
	80
	83
	65
	54

	1998
	80
	84
	68
	56

	1999
	81
	84
	68
	56

	2000
	81
	85
	67
	56

	2001
	80
	84
	66
	57

	2002
	79
	83
	65
	55

	2003
	80
	84
	65
	64

	2004
	79
	82
	65
	64

	2005
	80
	83
	70
	64

	2006
	81
	84
	68
	61


  * Figures are based on calendar year Federally inspected slaughter except for boxed beef, which are based on firms’ fiscal years as reported to GIPSA in annual reports.  NA= Not yet available.  Boxed beef data is on a delayed reporting cycle.
GIPSA-12, Auction market failures

Ms. DeLauro:  Please update the table that appears in last year's hearing record showing the number of auction market failures, the amount owed for livestock each year, and the amount recovered from bonds and other sources during each year to include fiscal year 2007.  How was GIPSA able to improve the recovery rate in FY 2007?

Response:     The information is submitted for the record.


[The information follows:]

Total Auction Market Financial Failures and Restitution, 1997-2007

	
	No. of
	
	
	
	

	
	Auction
	
	
	Recovery
	Percent

	Fiscal
	Market
	Total Owed
	Recovery
	From Other
	Total

	Year
	Failures
	Consignors
	From Bonds
	Sources
	Recovery

	 1997
	5
	$258,768
	$182,029
	$13,473
	76

	 1998
	2
	$225,001
	$66,131
	0
	29

	 1999
	3
	$862,666
	$60,000
	$424,589
	56

	 2000
	4
	$399,023
	$100,193
	$186,113
	71

	 2001
	4
	$1,104,985
	$133,745
	$519,265
	59

	 2002
	6
	$1,082,034
	$378,610
	0
	35

	 2003
	6
	$1,187,979
	$211,464
	$138,848
	30

	 2004
	2
	$145,772
	$60,000
	$16,649
	53

	 2005
	3
	$336,006
	$85,000
	$201,840
	78

	 2006
	9
	$979,543
	$267,174
	$19,380
	 29*

	 2007
	11
	$511,704
	$37,252
	$155,890
	 38*


  * Final recovery rates may change pending final resolution.
The variability in between year recovery rates makes it difficult to correlate new enforcement practices with a single year recovery rate change.  Despite this GIPSA has initiated a larger overall emphasis on expanding its field presence.  This is particularly important for livestock markets and more so when markets start displaying symptoms of financial difficulty, such as delayed payments to sellers or writing check with insufficient funds to sellers.  At the onset of complaints of financial difficulty by livestock sellers to GIPSA regarding a market, our auditors travel within two days of the complaint to the market.  At the market our auditors assess the extent of the problem and any needed intervention.  This on-site presence is credited with limiting the magnitude of the financial damage and ensuring that other livestock seller protections such as the custodial account are not illegitimately dissipated.  Protecting all seller compensation funds is critical so that if a failure occurs compensation funds are not limited to the bond. A rapid response in getting on site is the best method to ensure that protection.
GIPSA-13, Livestock from captive supplies and/or forward contracts

Ms. DeLauro:  Update the table that appears in last year's hearing record showing what percentage of the livestock that is slaughtered annually comes from captive supplies and/or forward contracts to include the most recent fiscal year data available.

Response:     The information is submitted for the record.


[The information follows:]

Top Four (Five *) Packers’ Packer-fed Cattle and Acquisition by Forward Contracts and Marketing Agreements as a Percentage of Total Steer and Heifer Slaughter, 1995-2006.

	Year
	Packer Fed Cattle
	Cattle From Forward Contracts And Marketing Agreements
	Total

	1995
	   3.2
	18.1
	21.3

	1996
	   3.4
	19.2
	22.5

	1997
	   3.8
	16.2
	20.1

	1998
	   3.5
	18.9
	22.4

	1999
	   8.4
	24.0
	32.4

	2000
	   9.1
	29.1
	38.2

	2001
	  10.9
	32.0
	43.0

	2002
	   9.6
	34.8
	44.4

	2003
	  10.4
	28.0
	38.4

	2004
	   8.3
	26.8
	35.1

	2005 
	   6.4
	29.2
	35.6

	2006
	   6.9
	33.5
	40.4


  * Starting in 2006 GIPSA expanded its procurement audits to the top five fed cattle slaughters, and audited summary data are not yet available for 2006.

GIPSA-14, Companies subject to the Packers and Stockyards Act (“PSA”)

Ms. DeLauro:  Please update the table that appears in last year's hearing record showing the number of slaughtering and processing packers subject to the PSA to include fiscal year 2007.  

Response:     Data on the number of non-slaughtering processing plants are no longer made available by the Food Safety and Inspection Service.  The numbers of slaughter firms and plants are provided below. 


The information is submitted for the record.

[The information follows:]

Number of Slaughterers Subject to the P&S Act, 1997-2006

	Year
	Bonded Slaughter Firms
	Non-Bonded Slaughter Plants*

	1997
	427
	468

	1998
	399
	513

	1999
	386
	491

	2000
	359
	503

	2001
	338
	522

	2002
	335
	494

	2003
	338
	481

	2004
	314
	485

	2005
	312
	453

	2006
	304
	441

	2007
	295
	NA


  * Number of Federally Inspected (FI) slaughter plants minus the number operated by reporting packers.  This is an estimate of the number of non-bonded slaughter firms (operating FI plants) that are not required to be bonded because they purchase less than $500,000 of livestock per year (includes slaughtering plants that also do processing but excludes non-FI plants). 

NA – data on number of non-bonded slaughter plants are not yet available. 

GIPSA-15, Compliance audits

Ms. DeLauro:  Update the table that appears in last year’s hearing record showing the number of compliance audits conducted on custodial accounts, the number of markets with shortages, the total dollars involved, and the amount restored to include fiscal year 2007.

Response:     The information is submitted for the record.


[The information follows:]

	Number of Market Audits, Shortages Found, and Amounts Restored, 1998-2007

	Fiscal Year
	Market Audits
	Markets with Shortages
	Total Shortage
	Amount Restored

	1998
	393
	187
	$5,705,252
	$3,690,355

	1999
	233
	103
	$4,294,368
	$2,701,091

	2000
	374
	154
	$9,161,520
	$5,916,746

	2001
	322
	156
	$8,966,218
	$6,313,383

	2002
	206
	 97
	$6,906,986
	$2,814,439

	2003
	262
	 92
	$4,984,315
	$2,055,203

	2004
	272
	 94
	$4,646,031
	$2,144,986

	2005
	252
	102
	$6,712,420
	$5,269,525

	2006
	347
	140
	$9,242,692
	$7,256,052

	2007
	296
	 99
	$6,252,181
	$2,037,080


GIPSA-16, Spending on competition, fair trade practices, and financial protection

Ms. DeLauro:  Please provide a table showing the amount of funds spent on competition, fair trade practices, and financial protection to include fiscal years 2000 through the projected level for fiscal year 2009.

Response:

Total Regulatory and Investigation Expenditures, 2000-2008
	Fiscal
	Regulatory 
	Investigations

	Year
	Activity*
	Competition 
	Trade Practices 
	Financial

	
	(Dollars in thousands)

	 2000
	 N/A
	2,986
	3,583
	4,628

	 2001
	 N/A
	3,431
	4,117
	5,318

	 2002
	 N/A
	3,575
	4,290
	5,541

	 2003
	 N/A
	3,755
	4,506
	5,820

	 2004
	 N/A
	3,905
	4,686
	6,053

	 2005
	 N/A
	4,050
	4,860
	6,277

	 2006
	6,705
	1,775
	2,640
	3,869

	 2007 
	7,142
	1,488
	4,259
	3,419

	2008(est)
	7,356
	1,533
	4,387
	3,522


   *  N/A - Not available. Prior to fiscal year 2006, regulatory activities and investigations were not differentiated.

GIPSA-17, International wheat market

Ms. DeLauro:  Why has the US share of the international wheat market declined significantly in the past 10 years?  What is GIPSA doing to enhance importers knowledge of a system and support differentiating wheat quality?

Response:     From FY 1999 to today, the U.S share of the global wheat market has fluctuated between 20 and 30 percent.  Many market factors contribute to this fluctuation, including: price, weather, foreign policies, other supply and demand factors, and perhaps most importantly, increasing competition from countries such as the Former Soviet Union (FSU).  World wheat production for the 2008/09 crop year is expected to rebound significantly from the 2007/08 crop year, as high prices last fall resulted in increased plantings of winter wheat in the northern hemisphere, where planting conditions were favorable.  Increases in world wheat production will provide ample competition for U.S. wheat, especially given the expected increases in the European Union-27, China, FSU, Canada, and Australia.  Argentine production is less certain at this point, as export taxes significantly reduced domestic farm prices, dampening the incentive to increase Argentine acreage.  As of the first week in May 2008, U.S. wheat exports were up 29 percent over the same time last year due to world-wide production shortfalls. As of April 2008, U.S. wheat exports, as a share of world wheat exports this market year, were up 10 percent from 22 to 32 percent, representing the United States’ highest market share in the last 10 marketing years.

GIPSA has marshaled significant resources toward developing and implementing methods to differentiate wheat quality with the goal of enhancing the value and marketability of U.S. wheat by optimizing the use of U.S. wheat for specific end uses, and providing value transparency from the producer to the processor.  One product of this initiative was the introduction of a wet gluten testing service on May 1, 2006.  We continue to conduct internal research, and to collaborate with government entities and academic, to identify means of assessing the various aspects of protein quality in wheat. We are working in partnership with USDA’s Agricultural Research Service on several wheat functionality research projects, and are funding extramural research with two land grant universities, with a goal of developing a rapid test of wheat protein functionality based on fundamental rheological measurements.  We will continue to work with the Agricultural Research Service, universities, and other entities to develop standardized methods for describing the viscous and elastic properties of gluten more precisely and reproducibly.  GIPSA is also evaluating the ability to standardize internationally recognized dough property test to promote testing consistency between exporter and receiver to reduce discrepancies that could be detrimental to trade.

GIPSA conducts extensive outreach programs to enhance importers knowledge about U.S. grain standards, and sampling and inspection procedures through the use of multimedia and printed material, available in several languages.  Also, GIPSA has worked with the Foreign Agricultural Service and U.S. Wheat Associates to maximize our resources to educate importers about the credibility of the U.S. inspection system through seminars, workshops, and providing other technical assistance.  Recent accomplishments include conducting a wheat grading seminar for the Iraqi Grain Board to facilitate their purchases of U.S. wheat; arranging for a delegation of Mexican flour millers to visit U.S. inspection sites; discussing inspection procedures with Mexican flour millers at their facilities; and placing an officer in Asia on extended assignment to meet with importers and their governments.  These initiatives have enhanced our reputation and instilled confidence in the services GIPSA provides. 

GIPSA-18, Economic and statistical analysis

Ms. DeLauro:  Are there any legal actions pending that require economic and statistical analysis by the agency?  If so, how many?  Please summarize them for the record.  

Response:     As of May 2008, there were 11 competition investigations currently in progress.  There are also a total of 8 regulatory actions involving competition related questions currently open.  Both the competition investigations and regulatory action are expected to require some degree of economic and statistical analysis.  

Of the 8 open regulatory actions, 2 examine anomalies in publicly reported livestock prices as part of our ongoing monitoring of fed cattle and hog markets, 1 was a pilot test of annual report compliance reviews, and 5 were related to livestock procurement audits and pricing practices.  Of the 11 open investigations, 6 involved restriction of competition issues, 4 are looking at pricing issues, and 1 deals with industry structure.                                                                                                                                                     

GIPSA-19, Dealer failures

Ms. DeLauro:  How much of the amount of unrecovered losses in the livestock marketing chain was from dealer failures during fiscal year 2007?  
Please update the five-year table showing the total unrecovered losses from dealer failures compared to the total owed sellers of livestock at the time of failure to include fiscal year 2007. 
Response:  The amount of unrecovered losses in the livestock marketing chain was from dealer failures during fiscal year 2007 was $6,134,993.   
The five-year table is submitted for the record.

[The information follows:]

Total Dealer Financial Failures and Restitution, 2002-2006
	
	Total Owed
	
	Total

	Fiscal
	Livestock Losses
	Unrecovered
	Percent

	Year
	Sellers
	Losses
	Unrecovered

	2002
	$3,271,962
	$2,593,198
	  79

	2003
	$1,805,600
	$1,664,396
	  92

	2004
	  $770,860
	  $675,860
	  88

	 2005*
	$2,993,990
	$2,993,990
	  100*

	2006
	$3,018,131
	$2,856,339
	 95**

	2007
	$6,941,930
	$6,134,993
	 88**


 * Restitution will be determined following resolution of ongoing litigation.

** Final recovery rates may change pending final resolution.

GIPSA-20, CODEX

Ms. DeLauro.  Please provide an update on the work GIPSA is doing with the CODEX regarding contaminants in grain, and the amount of funds devoted to this effort for fiscal years 2007, 2008, and projected for 2009.

Response:     A GIPSA employee serves as the Alternate U.S. Delegate to the Codex Committee on Methods of Analysis and Sampling (CCMAS).  The CCMAS reviews and endorses a broad spectrum of methods, including methods for both nutrients and contaminants in foods and grains.  Much of the work with respect to contaminants in grain would typically be done by the Codex Committee on Cereals, Pulses and Legumes (CCCPL), but this committee is currently inactive.  The CCMAS has been focusing most recently on developing criteria for evaluating acceptable methods of analysis, revising analytical terminology for Codex use, and developing criteria for methods for the detection and identification of foods derived from biotechnology. GIPSA devotes approximately $12,000 annually to Codex, but this is almost exclusively related to methods for biotechnology, not for contaminants in grain.
GIPSA-21, Pesticide Data Program

Ms. DeLauro:  What is GIPSA doing and how much did it spend in the Pesticide Data Program in fiscal year 2007? How much does the agency expect to spend in fiscal years 2008 and 2009? 
Response:     In support of the Pesticide Data Program, GIPSA develops methods and analyzes various grains and grain products for a variety of pesticides, herbicides, and fumigants. In fiscal year 2007, GIPSA developed and validated 2 new methods for corn, analyzed 380 peanut butter samples, and analyzed 660 corn grain samples for 112 residues. In fiscal year 2008, GIPSA projects to analyze approximately 660 corn grain samples for 112 residues, and to develop analytical methods for rice for USDA’s Agricultural Marketing Service (AMS). To support the Pesticide Data Program in fiscal year 2006, GIPSA supplied services to AMS in the amount of $545,000; in fiscal year 2007 GIPSA provided services to AMS for $500,000; and in fiscal year 2008 GIPSA expects to provide services to AMS for $415,000.  

GIPSA-22, Violation cases

Ms. DeLauro:  Were there any violation cases pending at the end of fiscal year 2007?  What is the status of any violation cases pending at the end of fiscal years 2004 through 2007?
Response:     At the beginning of FY 2007, 14 cases involving alleged violations of the USGSA and the AMA were pending further GIPSA action.  During FY 2007, GIPSA opened 12 new cases related to numerous alleged violations, including: altering official certificates, exporting without official inspection and weighing, improperly requesting new inspection, attempt to cause the issuance of false certificates, improper aflatoxin procedures, improper protein testing procedures, altering official documents, exceeding 15,000-metric-ton limit, and exporting without mandatory services.

GIPSA took the following administrative action to close 14 cases:  in two cases, GIPSA issued cautionary letters; in 3 cases, GIPSA issued warning letters; in 5 cases, GIPSA issued informational letters; in 1 case, GIPSA terminated a contract sampler; 1 case was closed with no finding of violation; in 1 case, GIPSA assessed a $5,000 civil penalty; and in the final case, a field location amended their procedures.  

Twelve cases were pending at the end of the fiscal year.   These cases were either in the process of investigation or were awaiting administrative action.

Two of the open cases were referred for further action.  GIPSA referred one case to USDA’s Office of the General Counsel requesting the assessment of a monetary civil penalty.  GIPSA's investigation revealed evidence that a grain company’s actions knowingly caused the issuance of false official inspection certificates.  In addition, the Justice Department is pursuing criminal actions in another investigation which involves causing the issuance of false official inspection certificates. 

Of the 8 violation cases pending at the end of FY 2005, GIPSA closed 5 cases during 2006.  Of the 14 violation cases pending at the end of FY 2006, GIPSA closed 11 cases during 2007.   

GIPSA-23, International monitoring program

Ms. DeLauro:  One of the international monitoring program’s functions is to travel to other countries to explain the agency’s inspection and weighing procedures.  How many countries did staff travel to in fiscal year 2007, and how many are planned for fiscal year 2008?  What is the total cost of this travel?  How much do the participating entities contribute to these costs? Provide for the record a list of countries you traveled to in fiscal year 2007, and the amount of funding each entity provided.  Also, provide for the record a list of countries you plan to travel to or have traveled to in fiscal year 2008, and the amount of funding each entity provided or will provide.  Under what situations do private sector entities pay for GIPSA travel expenses?

Response:     In fiscal year 2007, staff traveled to 38 countries (on 
27 trips) to explain the Agency’s inspection and weighing procedures, attend meetings with international government officials, attend conferences, and respond to grain quality discrepancies.  A list of the destinations follows.
	Algeria

Argentina

Australia

Botswana

Brazil

Canada

Chile

China

Colombia

Costa Rica

Cyprus

Dominican Republic

Egypt

El Salvador

Guatemala

Honduras

India

Indonesia

Jamaica

Japan

Jordan


	Korea

Mexico

Morocco

Nigeria

Oman

Peru

Philippines

Poland

Russia

South Africa

Taiwan

Thailand

Tunisia

United Arab Emirates

Venezuela

Vietnam

Yemen




The total costs (and funding source) for fiscal year 2007 are summarized below.

 

Funding Sources


Travel Costs



GIPSA




   $112,430




Other USDA Agencies

   $ 24,272


Private Sector


   $ 83,334


TOTAL



  
   $220,037
In fiscal year 2008 (as of 4/14/08), staff traveled to 16 countries (on 
23 trips) to explain the Agency’s inspection and weighing procedures, attend meetings with international government officials, attend conferences, and respond to grain quality discrepancies. A list of the destinations follows.

	Belgium

Canada

China

Ethiopia

Hong Kong

Hungary

Italy

Korea
	Malawi

Malaysia

Mexico

Philippines

Singapore

Taiwan

United Arab Emirates

Vietnam



The total costs (and funding sources) for fiscal year 2008 are summarized below.

 

Funding Sources


Travel Costs



GIPSA




   $ 70,770


Other USDA Agencies

   $  5,245



Private Sector


   $116,665


TOTAL



  
   $192,680
The private sector may pay for the travel expenses of a GIPSA employee when they have asked GIPSA to perform private consultative services that benefit that particular entity or fall outside the scope of the agency’s own objectives.  For example, on a number of occasions in FY 2006 through FY 2008, grain export companies have requested that a GIPSA employee observe Iraqi inspectors sampling their wheat shipments in Syria and the United Arab Emirates.  In these instances, the grain exporter paid a consulting fee and travel costs of the GIPSA employee.  

GIPSA-24, IT spending

Ms. DeLauro:  Please provide GIPSA’ s spending levels for IT hardware and software purchases and related contractual support in fiscal year 2007, and estimates for fiscal years 2008 and 2009.

Response:     The information is submitted for the record.


[The information follows:]

	
	FY 2007
	FY 2008
	FY 2009

	Equipment

(purchases/leases)
	394,000
	254,238
	254,238

	Software

(purchases/leases)
	372,000
	362,795
	362,795

	Contractual

Support
	2,143,000
	2,148,674
	2,148,674


GIPSA-25, IT Budget
Ms. DeLauro:  What is the total IT budget for GIPSA?  Provide a subtotal for each program: Grain and Packers and Stockyards.

Response: 
  The total IT budget for FY 2008 is $6.8 million, $4.4 million for the Federal Grain Inspection Service and $2.4 million for the Packers and Stockyards Program.

GIPSA-26, IT Purchases
Ms. DeLauro:  How much does GIPSA plan to spend on IT purchases in fiscal year 2008 and fiscal year 2009?  How much did the Agency spend on IT purchases in fiscal year 2007?   Include specific amounts requested for e-gov activities.  Of these amounts, what has been spent on the application modernization project?

Response:     The information is submitted for the record.


[The information follows:]

	
	FY 2007
	FY 2008
	Proposed

FY 2009

	IT purchases
	721,384
	617,033
	617,033

	E-gov
	2,200,000
	2,148,674
	2,148,674


GIPSA-27, Transfer of Funds
Ms. DeLauro:  Did GIPSA move any funds to the OCIO or CCE in fiscal year 2007 or reimburse either of those offices that year?  If so, when, for what purpose, and in what amount? Does GIPSA have any plans to take such actions in fiscal years 2008 or 2009?  

Response:     GIPSA did not have any transfer of funds for fiscal year 2007.  There are no plans for funds transfers or reimbursements to OCIO or CCE in fiscal years 2008 or 2009.

GIPSA-28, Anti-competitive behavior
Ms. DeLauro:  How much did GIPSA spend in fiscal year 2007 to identify anti-competitive behavior?  Are any funds currently being targeted to identify anti-competitive behavior and to examine competitive implications of contract livestock production for fiscal year 2008 and 2009?  If so, how much?
Response:     GIPSA spent approximately $1,488,000 on investigations of potential anti-competitive behavior in fiscal year 2007.  GIPSA employs economists and legal specialists in each regional office to focus on competition concerns.  In fiscal year 2007 economists engaged in a variety of regulatory and investigative enforcement actions.  This included providing information to the Commodity and Futures Trading Commission and the Department of Justice in their surveillance of livestock market competition and merger analysis responsibilities and conducting complex investigations of potential anti-competitive behavior in the marketplace.
GIPSA-29, Rapid response
Ms. DeLauro:  How much is GIPSA currently spending on rapid response teams?  How much is planned for FY 2009?  Please describe what the rapid response teams do.  How many GIPSA staff years were used for rapid response in fiscal year 2007 and how many are estimated for rapid response in fiscal year 2008?
Response:     Rapid response investigations are initiated when there is a strong potential for immediate and irreparable financial harm to livestock sellers from the actions of a livestock dealer, market, or packer.  Most often, but not always, GIPSA is alerted to situations warranting rapid response investigations when a livestock buyer fails to meet prompt payment requirements to multiple sellers.  Bank checks with insufficient funds along with shortages in custodial accounts maintained for livestock seller proceeds tend to be leading indicators of a firm’s financial failure.  Rapid intervention in securing firm assets on behalf of livestock sellers frequently is the best action to ensure their payment when a firm fails.  In fiscal year 2007, GIPSA spent approximately $1 million on rapid response investigations.  Projecting FY 2008 expenditures is complicated by ongoing economic conditions relative to increased operating loan costs and the effect this may have on firm economic health.  Regardless, GIPSA expects to spend no less than in FY 2007.

In fiscal year 2007, GIPSA initiated 18 rapid response investigations and 13 in fiscal year 2008 to date.  A typical rapid response investigation takes 2 auditors approximately 1-2 weeks of on-premise audit work and an additional 4 weeks of GIPSA office activity reconciling firm accounts, validating livestock seller claims, and preparing a case file. These activities may extend over 9 months while waiting for responses from the industry.  In each of the fiscal years approximately 5 staff years were dedicated to rapid response investigations.
GIPSA-30, Live weight livestock purchases
Ms. DeLauro:  Please update the table from last year that provides data regarding the numbers of livestock purchased based on live weight to include the most recent data available.  In addition to this data, please add the most recent data available on “carcass-based” purchases.  Please define “live weight” purchases.  Define “carcass-based” purchases versus “live weight” purchases.  Are there additional purchasing mechanisms?  Please describe.


Response:     The information is submitted for the record.


[The information follows:]

Live-Weight Purchases By Class Of Livestock, Slaughter Packers Reporting To GIPSA, 1995-2006 Reporting Years.

	
	Cattle
	Calves
	Hogs
	Sheep & lambs

	Year
	Head
	Share Of  Total  Slaughter
	Head
	Share Of  Total  Slaughter
	Head
	Share Of  Total  Slaughter
	Head
	Share Of  Total   Slaughter

	
	Thous.
	Percent
	Thous.
	Percent
	Thous.
	Percent
	Thous.
	Percent

	1995
	18,086
	53.5
	633
	49.2
	52,318
	57.1
	2,354
	54.0

	1996
	18,837
	52.7
	607
	43.8
	40,338
	48.3
	1,801
	48.2

	1997
	18,413
	52.5
	734
	59.5
	32,821
	37.4
	1,773
	56.3

	1998
	19,049
	55.9
	656
	56.6
	27,448
	29.9
	1,899
	57.9

	1999
	17,545
	50.5
	504
	47.6
	24,823
	25.3
	1,513
	47.6

	2000
	17,102
	48.4
	495
	51.3
	24,711
	26.3
	1,323
	44.1

	2001
	14,932
	44.2
	479
	54.7
	26,883
	28.0
	  840
	30.1

	2002
	12,541
	37.2
	492
	57.3
	25,077
	25.8
	1,062
	39.6

	2003
	14,116
	40.2
	553
	59.4
	22,413
	23.1
	1,023
	47.0

	2004
	15,112
	46.6
	351
	49.6
	23,092
	23.4
	1,329
	53.9

	2005
	13,663
	43.7
	415
	63.7
	21,453
	21.2
	  948
	47.7

	2006
	15,004
	46.7
	397
	66.3
	24,474
	23.4
	1,056
	51.9


Carcass-Weight Purchases By Class Of Livestock, 2006 Reporting Year.

	
	Cattle
	Calves
	Hogs
	Sheep & lambs

	Year
	Head
	Share Of  Total  Slaughter
	Head
	Share Of  Total  Slaughter
	Head
	Share Of  Total  Slaughter
	Head
	Share Of  Total  Slaughter

	
	Thous.
	Percent
	Thous.
	Percent
	Thous.
	Percent
	Thous.
	Percent

	2006
	17,102
	53.3
	201
	33.7
	80,075
	76.6
	977
	48.1


A “live weight” purchase is a purchase of livestock in which the price is 
quoted, and the final payment is determined, based on the weight of the animals while they are still alive.  A “carcass-based” purchase is a purchase in which the price is quoted, and the final payment is determined, based on the weight of each animal’s carcass after it has been slaughtered and eviscerated.

While there is variation in the details of livestock purchase mechanisms, essentially all are variations of live weight or carcass-based methods.  Transactions that use some variation of live weight purchase are usually on an “as-is” basis with a single price used for the entire transaction.  The price may be fixed by negotiation in advance, or the price may be established from prices reported by a market price reporting service after the animals are delivered or slaughtered.  In some instances provisions may be made for paying different prices for animals that differ significantly from other animals in the transaction (for example, animals that are much smaller than the average for the transaction may receive a lower price).

Variations in carcass-based purchase methods frequently involve provisions for premiums or discounts based on the quality or other characteristics of the animals in each transaction.  In some transactions, prices are adjusted for non-quality factors such as time of delivery and number of animals in the transaction.  Some carcass-based purchases, often known as “carcass merit” purchases, include a base price that applies to all carcasses in the transaction, and premiums or discounts for individual carcasses based on the quality or other attributes of each carcass, such as quality grade, yield grade, yield, or percentage of lean meat in the carcass.

Some carcass merit transactions use USDA grades to determine carcass quality. A growing number of transactions include price adjustments for quality characteristics that are not covered by USDA grades, such as percent of lean meat in the carcass and size of rib eye.  The cattle, hog, and sheep industries are exploring ways to measure and reward producers for additional carcass quality factors, such as pH levels, meat tenderness, and palatability. Packers measure or estimate these carcass characteristics using various carcass evaluation technologies.  The use of carcass evaluation technologies to determine payment to producers is increasing.  
GIPSA-31, Carcass merit purchasing technologies
Ms. DeLauro:  What are carcass merit purchasing technologies?  How are they used in the various livestock sectors?  Please provide an update on GIPSA’s work in this area.
Response:     Carcass merit purchasing technologies are used by packers to evaluate specific carcass characteristics in order to determine final purchase price and to make business decisions.  Carcass merit purchasing technologies provide both packers and producers with information on the value of individual carcasses, allowing packers to make business decisions on procurement needs and meat marketing opportunities, and producers to make business decisions regarding their livestock production operations and marketing choices.

GIPSA continues to work with the industry in implementing voluntary standards for the use of these technologies, and is also working to update regulations in response to the newly adopted standards which will ensure uniform application of technologies addressed in the standards.  Currently, GIPSA monitors the equipment and its output (lean percent) to determine if any deceptive practices are occurring.  GIPSA inspects a sample of carcass weighing and evaluation instruments based on a random sample of packers to determine industry compliance levels and detect violations.

GIPSA-32, Measures of carcass quality
Ms. DeLauro:  Please provide some examples of some internally assigned measures of carcass quality using modern and complex technologies and how those contrast with weight and grade measures used in the past?  Does the GIPSA have any data that shows that producers have been treated to unfair or unjust discriminatory practices?  
Response:     Two of the most widely used carcass merit measuring technologies are:

Ultrasound Technology. The measuring principle of the whole carcass ultrasound system is a digitalized three-dimensional scanning of the entire carcass.  The system provides information about the total lean meat percent, the lean meat percent in the ham, loin, shoulder, and belly of a hog carcass.  The percent of lean meat is then used as a factor in determining payment.

Vision Camera Technology. The vision based instrument measures beef carcass yield grade.  The instrument must meet certain performance requirements for accuracy and repeatability in the prediction of the yield grade of the carcasses.

Other technology is under various stages of development and use that will measure other desirable carcass traits.  Emerging technologies include pH measuring devices and palatability technology.  

These technologies are relatively new and GIPSA began systematically inspecting these instruments in fiscal year 2006.  In fiscal year 2007, results of random packer inspections of scales and carcass evaluation devices indicate a compliance rate of 61 percent.  GIPSA expects the compliance rate will improve as inspections continue. 

GIPSA-33, User fees

Ms. DeLauro:  The budget proposes legislation for GIPSA to convert to user fees in standardization activities and licensing fees in Packers and Stockyards activities.  Please provide to the Committee data and/or analysis utilized in estimating the total cost recovery of $27,200,000 from grain standardization fees and Packers and Stockyards program licensing fees.  How much support does the fee have, and what likelihood is there that that money will be available to you?
Response:     The user fee legislation proposes to collect fees for grain standardization activities and licensing fees for regulated entities under the Packers and Stockyards Act for one year without spending authority.  This will allow a reserve fund to be established in advance of actual spending. We will seek spending authority after sufficient funds are available to cover program costs.  This will diminish or eliminate the need for appropriated funding for these programs in future years. 

Proposed legislation for shifting standardization to user fees in the Grain Program and for license fees to recover the costs of the Packers and Stockyards Programs is being developed in cooperation with OMB and will be sent to Congress shortly.  GIPSA intends to work with the authorizing committee when the committee receives the legislation for consideration.

GIPSA-34, Cartagena
Ms. DeLauro:  Please update the Committee on GIPSA’s participation in the Cartagena Protocol.   With respect to this, please indicate what travel costs GIPSA incurred in fiscal year 2007 and what costs are estimated for fiscal year 2008 and budgeted for fiscal year 2009.
Response:     The third Meeting of the Parties of the Cartagena Protocol on Biosafety was in March 2006.  At that meeting, there was a positive outcome to the most contentious issue, which related to documentation requirements for international shipments of living modified organisms intended for food, feed, and processing.  New, onerous requirements were not adopted, the preferred U.S. outcome.  The next Meeting of the Parties is in progress this week in Bonn, Germany.  GIPSA is represented on the official delegation.  

During FY 2006, GIPSA incurred $4,223 in travel costs related to the Protocol (to attend the 3rd Meeting of the Parties).  GIPSA incurred no costs in FY 2007, but we anticipate spending approximately $4,500 in FY 2008 to attend the 4th Meeting of the Parties. 
GIPSA-35, Digital technology

Ms. DeLauro:  Please provide an update on what digital technology GIPSA is using for grain inspection.
Response:     GIPSA has developed digital inspector calibration content which has been made available to the Official Inspection system and Industry via the internet.  GIPSA personnel have collected thousands of digitized images of various grain defects.  These images have been incorporated into inspector training modules distributed via the internet for use in calibrating all individuals currently grading grain.  

Currently calibration is based on corrections to defect interpretations of individual samples reviewed.  The adjustments are verbally transmitted from the Board of Appeals and Review through a chain of intermediary Quality Assurance Specialists to field inspectors. When fully implemented, this new system will allow all personnel (whether Official Inspectors or industry inspectors) to be calibrated against an independent standard. The ultimate objective is to improve the consistency of subjective measurements. The technology also has the potential to significantly shorten the time required to train inspectors and to identify grading weaknesses requiring hands on training.  

Digital media technology has already had a significant impact on our International Programs.  The production and worldwide distribution of grain grading tutorial CDs, visual grading reference mats for all grains, oilseeds, and edible commodities translated into several languages, and availability of these training tools on the GIPSA web site has proven to be very beneficial to our overseas customers.  Digital media has helped to harmonize inspection procedures in other countries and encourages others to establish grain inspection laboratories that mirror GIPSA inspection labs. 

 

The use of digital media also helps to reduce the number of costly disputes over grain quality between U.S. exporters and overseas buyers and reduces the number of discrepancies that GIPSA must investigate. This allows our International Affairs staff to focus their time on more productive marketing issues.

GIPSA implemented digital technology in the Rice program several years ago.  Although the technology was successful in the Official Inspection system, it was not commercially viable and the company discontinued manufacture of the equipment.  GIPSA continues to monitor technology development with respect to digital imaging, and will investigate technology that appears to have the potential to automate and/or replace subjective grading practices.

GIPSA-36, Duty officer in Asia
Ms. DeLauro:  The budget requests funding for a permanent duty officer in Asia to address immediate and long-term issues in the region, to promote a better understanding and adoption of U.S. sampling and inspection methods to minimize differences in inspection results and to develop personal relationships with customers.  The budget request includes an increase of $400,000 for the position.  How much will be spent on the temporary duty officer in Asia in FY 2008?  Please provide a detailed breakout for each year.
Response:     In FY 2006, GIPSA spent $135,000 and in FY 2007, GIPSA spent $155,000 to station a representative in Asia for two 4-month assignments. GIPSA anticipates FY 2008 costs for this program will be $189,000 to station a representative in Asia for two 4-month periods.  To date, during these temporary assignments, the USDA’s Foreign Agricultural Service provided an office and logistical support at no charge.  The proposed increase in funding will cover salary, benefits, and travel costs for the full year.  It also includes the anticipated cost we will incur for embassy space and support (including security), which we have not been required to pay in the past with our temporary assignments.   
GIPSA-37, Other services expenses
Ms. DeLauro:  What expenses are included in line 25.2 of the Object Class table, titled “Other Service”?  Please provide a detailed breakout for fiscal years 2006-2009.

Response:     The expenses in line 25.2 of the Object Class table, titled “Other services” include charges for contractual services that are not otherwise classified.  A detailed breakout of Object Class 25.2 for fiscal years 2007 through 2009 follows.

	Major Cost Category
	FY 2007
	FY 2008
	FY 2009

	Contractual Services Performed by Federal Agency
	$4,355,419
	$4,570,219
	$6,512,562

	Training, Tuition Fees, & Other
	180,499
	210,875
	300,496

	Repair, Alterations, or Maintenance
	177,369
	166,547
	237,329

	Other Contractual Services
	63,644
	43,062
	61,363

	Agreements
	149,198
	148,815
	212,062

	ADP Maintenance Contracts
	199,279
	193,144
	275,229

	Miscellaneous Services
	203,452
	212,141
	302,301

	Fees
	20,867
	15,198
	21,657

	TOTAL
	$5,529,726
	$5,560,000
	$7,923,000


GIPSA-38, OIG audit report
Ms. DeLauro:  Please update the response from last year regarding the OIG audit report on the Packers and Stockyards Programs in December 2005.  The response in last year’s hearing record indicated that OIG would initiate a follow-up review in early 2008.  Has this review been initiated and what is its status?
Response:
The status of USDA’s Office of the Inspector General (OIG) audit initiated in April 2005 of GIPSA’s management and oversight of the Packers and Stockyards Program (P&SP) is as follows.  OIG issued report 30601-01-Hy—Grain Inspection, Packers and Stockyards Administration's Management and Oversight of the Packers and Stockyards Programs, on January 10, 2006, citing four major findings and providing 10 recommendations.  P&SP concurred with the findings and recommendations; and during Fiscal Years 2006 and 2007, initiated and implemented significant progress in improving management controls and in strengthening the program policy and delivery.  OCFO accepted final action on all recommendations, as follows: 

•
recommendations 1, 5, and 8 were closed May 8, 2006; 

•
recommendations 3, 4, 6, and 7 were closed August 10, 2006; &

•
recommendations 2, 9, and 10 were closed March 16, 2007

On March 16, 2007, the OCFO notified GIPSA that all of the planned corrective actions were completed and that no further reporting to the Office of the Chief Financial Officer (OCFO) was necessary for this audit. 

In response to OIG’s call to agencies for FY 2008 audit and investigation planning, GIPSA recommended that OIG conduct a follow-up audit of the P&S program.  On February 26, 2008, OIG held a conference with GIPSA to initiate its follow-up audit.  OIG has indicated the draft report has a tentative delivery date to GIPSA of June, 2008.

GIPSA-39, Audit of four largest beef meatpackers
Ms. DeLauro:  In requesting funds in FY 2004 for an audit of the four largest beef meatpackers, GIPSA said it had never audited a large packer.   In 2005, it stated in response to a question for the record that:  “GIPSA has not conducted a complete financial audit of any of the four largest beef packers. The FY 2004 funding request was intended to permit GIPSA to verify financial information underlying the summary information submitted by packers in required annual reports.  Absent a complaint or obvious omission, GIPSA relies on the accuracy of summary information submitted in annual reports to ascertain whether a large packer is complying with the Packers and Stockyards Act financial requirements.”
Response:  
A. Have you requested funding for this pilot program since FY 2004 and if not, why not? 

Response: No, the indication from earlier appropriation committees was such activity was not of funding interest.
B. Have you spent any funding for this initiative through other funds available to GIPSA or USDA? 

Response: Yes, GIPSA conducts various compliance reviews and investigations of the largest packers on a regular basis.  The funding source is derived through the regularly appropriated GIPSA funds.
C. Should we consider funding this in 2009? 
Response: GIPSA is seeking $2.2 million in FY 2009 to strengthen enforcement of the P&S Act.  This funding will support hiring new auditors to increase the frequency and depth of financial audits of packers, livestock markets, and dealers to achieve greater compliance with the P&S Act.  Additional audit staff would allow for prompt and thorough audits of any large packer should the need arise and allow the Agency to significantly increase routine financial audits – solvency, custodial accounts, and prompt pay – of all regulated entities including packers.

D. What have you done in the absence of funding to ensure the information is correct and the packers are in compliance with the law? 

Response: GIPSA conducts various compliance reviews and investigations of the largest packers on a regular basis.  These activities include audits of payment and procurement practices to ensure livestock sellers are receiving payment timely and according to transaction terms, review of annual reports to ensure meatpackers are solvent, and inspections of scales and carcass evaluation devices to determine whether producers are being paid the proper amount for the livestock they sell.  The most common type audits are financial audits such as solvency, custodial accounts, and prompt pay audits to document the ability of a firm to meet obligations of livestock sellers.  The largest beef meatpackers undergo regular audits by internal auditors and large public accounting firms.  GIPSA reviews and relies on the information contained in these audit reports in conjunction with the annual reports required to be filed with GIPSA to evaluate the packers’ compliance.

GIPSA-40, Audit of four largest beef meatpackers
Ms. DeLauro:  Last year, GIPSA indicated that the agency was assembling an audit team and preparing an audit of one of the large packers.  What was the final result – did GIPSA conduct an audit of one of the four largest meat packers?  If so, what were your agency’s findings?
Response:     In FY 2007, GIPSA conducted a financial audit of one of the ten largest packers.  We are currently bringing charges against that entity for failure to comply with the P&S Act.  Another audit, of one of the fourth largest packer, was initiated last fiscal year and later terminated when the packer was purchased by another firm with sufficient capital to resolve any potential financial weaknesses.

GIPSA-41, Audit of four largest beef meatpackers
Ms. DeLauro:  After so many years of relying on large companies to self-certify their compliance with the Packers and Stockyards Act, why did GIPSA finally initiate an audit last year?
Response:     In FY 2007, GIPSA conducted a financial audit of one of the ten largest packers.  We are currently bringing charges against that entity for failure to comply with the P&S Act.  Another audit, also of a large packer, was initiated last fiscal year and later terminated when the packer was purchased by another firm with sufficient capital to resolve any potential financial weaknesses.

GIPSA conducts various compliance reviews and investigations of the largest packers on a regular basis.  These activities include audits of payment and procurement practices to ensure livestock sellers are receiving payment timely and according to transaction terms, review of annual reports to ensure meatpackers are solvent, and inspections of scales and carcass evaluation devices to determine whether producers are being paid the proper amount for the livestock they sell.

The most common type audits are financial audits such as solvency, custodial accounts, and prompt pay audits to document the ability of a firm to meet obligations of livestock sellers.  The largest beef meatpackers undergo regular audits by internal auditors and large public accounting firms.  GIPSA reviews and relies on the information contained in these audit reports in conjunction with the annual reports required to be filed with GIPSA to evaluate the packers’ compliance. 

In FY 2008, we plan to audit several large packing firms for solvency.  These audit plans were developed based on GIPSA’s monitoring of industry data. GIPSA is seeking $2.2 million in FY 2009 to strengthen enforcement of the P&S Act.  This funding will support hiring new auditors to increase the frequency and depth of financial audits of packers, livestock markets, and dealers to achieve greater compliance with the P&S Act.  Additional audit staff would allow for prompt and thorough audits of any large packer should the need arise and allow the Agency to significantly increase routine financial audits – solvency, custodial accounts, and prompt pay – of all regulated entities including packers.

GIPSA-42, Audit of four largest beef meatpackers
Ms. DeLauro:  The fiscal year 2009 budget request includes an increase of $2,160,000 to strengthen GIPSA’s enforcement of the Packers and Stockyards Act of 1921 as amended.  Please provide more detail about this request.  What spurred the request?  What new, currently unstaffed territories will be covered by new employees?  If Congress provided the additional funds and staff that you are requesting, would any of these resources be dedicated to providing greater oversight of the largest beef meat packer companies?
Response:     GIPSA requested the $2.16 million to further strengthen direct enforcement and promote voluntary compliance of the Packers and Stockyards Act.  If the funds are provided the Agency will hire 18 additional field employees to conduct direct compliance, investigative, and enforcement activities.  The new hires will include 15 new resident agents to expand compliance reviews and investigations into new, currently un-staffed territories.  Other professionals – accountants, economists, lawyers – will be added to each regional office to provide specialized technical expertise.  The increased workforce will support dozens of audits of packers, livestock markets and dealers, allow us to increase our check weighing activity, and respond quickly to complaints of unfair and deceptive practices.  The increase would also facilitate GIPSA’s ability to conduct a solvency audit of a large packer if the need arose and would allow the Agency to significantly increase routine financial audits (solvency, custodial accounts, and prompt pay) of all regulated businesses including packers.  Expanding our field presence in the industry would help promote voluntary compliance.   

Questions Submitted by Representative Kingston

Fiscal Year 2009 Hearing Questions

Grain Inspection, Packers and Stockyards AdministrationPRIVATE 

Livestock Industry Integration and Consolidation
Critics of the livestock industry assert that trends in consolidation and vertical control in the livestock and poultry sectors have enabled a relative handful of industry players to dominate markets and have undermined the traditional U.S. system of smaller-scale, independent, family-based farming.  On the other hand, many producers counter that structural changes in animal agriculture, processing, and marketing are a desirable outgrowth of factors such as technological and managerial improvements, changing consumer demand for a wider range of low-cost, convenient products, and expanding international trade.

GIPSA-43, Livestock Industry Integration and Consolidation

Mr. Kingston:  Clearly alternative marketing arrangements such as forward contracts, marketing agreements, and custom feeding arrangements provide numerous benefits in the form of risk mitigation, revenue assurance, and the ability to diversify to those producers who chose to take advantage of such opportunities in the marketplace. How does GIPSA balance allowing market forces to propel this sector toward unprecedented efficiency and quality, while protecting market participants who often lack equal bargaining power from unfair, discriminatory or deceptive practices?  To what extent did the violations of the Packers and Stockyards Act pursued by GIPSA in FY 2007 involve unfair, discriminatory or deceptive practices?

Response: Pro-competitive activity, such as forward contracts or market agreements, is not a violation of the Packers and Stockyards Act of 1921 (Act) and would not warrant enforcement actions.  Unfair, discriminatory, and deceptive practices are a violation of the Act.  Alleged violations of the Act are investigated by units within the Regional Offices. When evidence of a violation is found, the case is forwarded to the Policy and Litigation Division of GIPSA in Headquarters. The GIPSA Headquarters staff evaluates the case and may offer the violator a stipulation agreement (an opportunity to accept a penalty and settle the case) or forward the case to the Office of the General Counsel (OGC) within USDA for civil litigation.  The OGC may elect to forward the case to the Department of Justice for criminal prosecution.

In fiscal year 2007 there were 73 investigations of alleged unfair, discriminatory, or deceptive practices out of 1,071 investigations.

GIPSA-44, Proposed User Fees


Mr. Kingston:  The Administration’s budget proposes the collection of user fees for the development of grain standards. From which grain industry participants does GIPSA propose to collect the fees? 


Response: To implement the collection of user fees for the development of grain standards, GIPSA would assess a minimum fee on the first purchaser of every bushel of grain produced in the United States at the first point of sale in the market.  Because marketing standards facilitate the sale of every bushel of grain in the United States, this user fee would equitably charge those who benefit from standardization activities.
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